MINUTES
CITY OF PLEASANTON
JOINT WORKSHOP
OF THE
CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION
January 30, 2007

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hosterman cailed the joint workshop to order at 6:31p.m.

ROLL CALL:
Present: Counciimembers Cook-Kallic, McGovern, Sullivan, Thorne, Mayor Hosterman
Planning Commissioners Blank, Fox, O'Connor, Olson, Pearce

PUBLIC COMMENT:
Public comment was held until after the staff report was given, Council and Commission
comments.

Discussion on the Preliminary results of the Traffic Modeling — Preferred
Land Use modeled on “Working Draft” circulation network

Principal Planner Janice Stern presented the staff report.
Mayor Hosterman requested comments from the Planning Commissioners.

Commissioner Fox had questions about how |-580 was modeled. She cited various
measurements from the 1996 General Plan and noted that the area is currently listed as
number 2 in the top ten areas of gridlock according to the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission. She asked if the 1996 General Plan was wrong and if the area should
have been designated as F or whether it was unanticipated what the volume would
become.

Public Works Deputy Director of Engineering Mike Tassano reviewed how the models
had been prepared in the last ten years and indicated staff had moved from a two-step
model to a four-step model. Staff uses the trip generation from the county models and
incorporates that into the localized models. Regarding the differences between the 1996
models and the current models, he noted there are additional refinements, land uses are
better known, and general plans throughout the nine counties have changed
considerably. He noted that is reflected in the changed volumes. He acknowledged that
there is more volume on |-580 than what was anticipated and agreed that the level of
service is at F for p.m. peak traffic.

Commissioner Fox asked if staff had included improvements to 1-580 by the time the city
reached build out.

Deputy Director Tassano replied that staff had assumed there would be an eastbound
HOV lane and that additional solutions are still under consideration.

Commissioner Fox asked if staff had assumed people would use [-680 if the
intersections at 1-580 were too congested even though the business may be closest to i-
580.



Deputy Director Tassano said the model could route traffic down Stoneridge from
Hopyard to I-680 if that was a faster route with the least number of delays.

Mayor Hosterman commented there is a new eastbound lane planned for |-580 and that
construction should break ground within a year.

Commissioner Blank noted that he has been reviewing Planning Commission reports
and the traffic model material. He stated that it was interesting that there have been
improvements in the modeling process since 1996 and indicated that in the presentation
there is a statement that of the four major intersections, three can be improved with fairly
minor improvements. He stated that there are many traffic models that come before the
Commission with mitigations that will fix certain problems and questioned what happens
if it doesn’t fix the problem. He questioned value of the models and the fact that no one
is willing to say we can have confidence in the model. If the Stoneridge Drive extension
went through based on the model and it doesn’t work, then what? He believes there is
no accountability. He asked how the city can build accountability into the traffic models.
The decisions are long lasting for the community and he was uncomfortable making
decisions based on models for which there is no apparent accountability. He asked how
the Commissioners and the City Council could be accountable in the event these models
are wrong and the improvements fail to fix the problems.

Mayor Hosterman believed that part of the solution was to have a public process, which
raises the credibility. She noted the Council and Commissioners are doing the best they
can given the information currently availabie on the city and surrounding regions and
believes the process is not perfect and a solution to all issues may not be possible.

Councilmember Sullivan understood the points raised by Commissioner Blank. He
believes the Council and Commissioners have a role to question the models and
assumptions used. He noted if there was doubt staff could be directed to go back and
change the model as overtime the models evolve.

Commissioner Olson agreed assumptions should be questioned along the way, but one
must keep in mind we are trying to predict the outcome of a system that is dynamic and
changes over time. He noted regarding traffic, if a family with specific travel patterns
leaves town and ancther family with different travel patterns moves in, that would
change the dynamics of traffic. The madel will not always be 100% right because it is a
dynamic, ever changing system.

Commissioner Pearce questioned the constrained gateway philosophy. She believes
the theory seemed to be that if a gateway is constrained, there would be less traffic
within the city.

Deputy Director Tassano said the model assumes a fixed number of cars come into the
city and if capacity is built for four times what is necessary then the extra lanes would not
be used. The model assumes mitigations have already been made and the downstream
impacts have been determined. He noted if the level of service results in E or F, then
constraints would be imposed in the model to see where the circulation changes would
occeur.

City Council Minutes 2 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



Commissioner Pearce referred to the preferred specific plan for Hacienda Business Park
and the allocation of 333 units. She asked if that was feasible for the area, since the
original discussion was for 1,200 units.

Planner Stern indicated the Hacienda representatives do not think 333 units is workable.
The minimum number they felt was feasible was 1,200 units for the transit oriented
development.

Planning Director Jerry Iserson indicated there were three different transportation
networks and models done. He noted one network included Stoneridge Drive extension
and the West Las Positas interchange as set forth in the existing General Plan. He
indicated the current models use the preferred build out land use and do not include the
Stoneridge Drive extension.

Commissioner O’Connor asked why the Stoneridge extension was not included in view
of the controversy surrounding it.

Director Iserson responded that it would be modeled at some point. In one of the past
workshops there was discussion about doing it now or as part of the EIR (Environmental
Impact Report) and Council decided to do it as part of the EIR. He noted staff was
asking if Council wanted to reconsider that approach and do the modeling now rather
than later.

Commissioner O’Connor asked about the timing of the process and the EIR.

Director Iserson responded it would take 45 to 60 days to do the model now. He noted
before the EIR process can start, defined land use and circulation plans must be
completed.

City Manager Fialho believed the fundamental question was whether modeling
Stoneridge now would slow down the General Plan process. The answer was no.

Commissioner O’Connor asked if it were done at the EIR process does staff believe
there would be a more stable plan to model. If it was done now, there might be changes
in the land use and the modeling may be incorrect.

City Manager Fialho said yes, if the land use changes. But he believed Council and the
Planning Commission had been consistent in terms of the three options to be evaluated.
There is the TOD (transit oriented development) option, the consensus plan, and a
hybrid plan. The benefit of having the modeling done up front is that you will have the
benefit of the data to make informed decision on land use and circulation.

Councilmember Sullivan felt there was confusion in the community about how the
Council and Planning Commission have approached the General plan update and
circulation element. Council has received many e-mails about this. He asked Mr. Fialho
to summarize the process, how the aiternatives were selected, and what the next steps
were.

City Manager Fialho indicated there have been several meetings regarding land use and
circulation throughout the General Plan process.

City Council Minutes 3 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



A preferred land use plan and consensus circulation plan was developed for modeling
purposes, which do not include Stoneridge Drive. Staff has told the Council and the
public that it will model the Stoneridge Drive extension and the remaining land use
options as part of the EIR process. Prior to final adopticn of the General Plan, Council
would consider the environmental impacts of any decision of any land use or circulation
decisions. Those decisions may or may not influence the environmental impacts. Staff
is suggesting that the analysis be done now rather than waiting until the end of the
process. As the work proceeds on the land use and circulation elements, Council will be
able to make more informed decisions.

Councilmember Sullivan reiterated that what has been done to this point was to create a
build cut base case and from this point alternatives would be reviewed. The question is
whether to do the Stoneridge analysis now or later. He then asked about the
assumptions in Attachment 1. He was concerned about some of the regional network
assumptions and whether the planned improvements would be constructed. He wanted
to know whether the Highway 84 improvements were included in the model.

Deputy Director Tassano indicated improvements from [-580 to Pigeon Pass were
included in the model but from Pigeon Pass to 1-680 were not. He noted that section is
still two lanes from the GE plant to 1-680.

Councilmember Sullivan referred to the Triangle Study being conducted by the CMA
(Congestion Management Agency) to review regional improvements for the Tri-Valley
area. He asked how that is factored into the Pleasanton model. He felt some of
Pleasanton’s traffic problems were the result of the regional transportation system
breaking down.

Deputy Director Tassano indicated the CMA has done a study to determine what
improvements are necessary for 1-580, |-680 and State Route 84 to relieve congestion.
A wide range of solutions have been reviewed and there is now a process for
prioritization of improvements. He noted staff has tried to make assumptions based on
the warst-case scenario because it takes years to accomplish regional improvements.

Councilmember Sullivan asked when decisions will be made from the Triangle Study as
far as what improvements will be made and the time of construction.

Deputy Director Tassanc believed the committee will be finished by this summer and
there should be a “road map” for regional improvements in the Tri-Valley.

Councilmember Sullivan believed the City Council would be making decisions that will
affect the city for a long time and wanted to make certain it had ali the information it
needed. In three or four months there will be additional information available and he
wanted to know how that would be addressed.

City Manager Fiatho said staff would include the Triangle Study resuits into the final
General Plan. He noted if a model is necessary, it couid be done at that time.

Councilmember Cock-Kallic expressed appreciation for the comments of Commissioner
Blank regarding the accountability for the results of the traffic modeling. However, she
also appreciated Commissioner Olson’s comments about so many unknowns. She
asked if there were alternatives to getting information and questioned whether cother

City Council Minutes 4 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



cities use something other than modeling or if this was the only strategy to get
information.

Deputy Director Tassano said this was the best practice. Pleasanton has the most
involved model of any local agency he has seen and is the best way to gather
information.

Councilmember Thorne asked if staff were requested to do additional modeling, would
the cost be covered under the existing professional services agreement.

Deputy Director Tassano replied that the models set forth in the staff report are definitely
covered. If 45-50 more runs are necessary, it may be necessary to draft a new
agreement.

Councilmember Thorne referred to the three left turn lanes from Santa Rita onto Valley
Avenue and asked what would happen to Valley Avenue? He questioned if traffic
moved quicker through the intersection if it would just back up on Valley?

Deputy Director Tassano said one of the difficulties in reviewing levels of service is that
the congestion points are always at the intersections. Traffic from a three lane road
could turn onto a two lane road so long as there were no congestion points on the two
lane road.

Councilmember Thorne referred to the review of problems on Highway 84. He felt it was
necessary to have an agreement among the cities involved in the Triangle Study
regarding improvements before any consideration should be given to Stoneridge Drive.

Mayor Hosterman said it has always been contemplated that at the end of the study
there would be some sort of agreement among the agencies involved for purposes of
lobbying with one voice for getting the necessary funding for the infrastructure
improvements.

Councilmember Thorne asked what was the East Dublin Properties Roadway Network?

Deputy Director Tassano said that was the specific plan for East Dublin and staff has
reviewed it.

Councilmember McGovern believed the biggest decision for the city of Pleasanton is
regarding its land use and circulation elements. She shared her concerns about
accountability. She felt when future development is reviewed, there needs to be some
safety valves in the conditions, especially with regard to funding mechanisms. She was
concerned that if the traffic model was incorrect, there might not be funding available for
a correction. She suggested adding that in all the conditions of new development.

Commissioner Blank agreed and suggested posting a bond for relief in the event the
traffic engineer’s plan fails the city and nearby neighborhoods could get some relief.

Councilmember McGovern expressed concerns about traffic signal synchronization and
asked if there could be a staff presentation on that subject.

City Council Minutes 5 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



Deputy Director Tassano said staff had already presented that idea to the City Manager.
It is proposed that could be done in April.

Councilmember McGovern referred to Attachment 4 (Local School Enrollment
Estimates), which indicates there could be an increase in students of 1,500 or more.
She wondered if the dispersed development plan should be modeled.

Planner Stern said the enroliment estimates were from the latest projection from the
School District and she assumed it reflected the consensus plan and build out. Staff has
asked the District for its comments on all three alternatives in terms of whether it could
accommodate them or if there were any comments. The School Board said it could
accommodate all the options, but had some concerns about some of the TOD options it
they included a higher percentage of affordable housing. The Board was concerned
about the distribution of the children from that housing in one or two schools.

Councilmember McGovern said she had read the report to say that the District preferred
the preferred plan or the dispersed plan. School traffic in the morning is what really adds
to the levels of service at certain intersections. Ms. McGovern then referred to Table 1
(Land Use Summary), and commented there is quite an increase in the amount of
square footage. She noted there is a housing cap, but there is no cap on commercial R
& D. When a traffic model is done, how does staff determine what numbers to use?

Planner Stern responded that staff takes a broad look at the parcels currently vacant and
uses the allowed FAR for the parcels and does a calculation based on that information.
If there is a likely proposal to be approved, that is used for that parcel. Staff generally
uses the worst-case scenario in terms of impact.

Councilmember McGovern asked the meaning of “level of service is estimated on an
integrated system basis rather than an isolated intersection.” Does that mean we look at
Valley and Santa Rita in comparison to others?

Deputy Director Tassano indicated that is the type of model being used, a constrained
network. In other words, if a level of service at one intersection is failing then the model
will not send the traffic onto the next intersection. For instance, if 200 cars cannot get
through the poor level of service intersection, it will not send those cars onto the next
intersection. If more cars want to get through an intersection than it can handle, it
spreads the peak time from one hour to one and a half hours.

Councilmember McGovern commented on the problems on 1-580 and Highway 84 and
the need for improvements. She stressed the need for improvements to 84. She felt
Stoneridge should be included in the studies for improvements.

Mayor Hosterman summarized the three issues for discussion and the idea of continuing
the policy of a constrained gateway community, a discussion of modeling the Stoneridge
Drive extension before the environmental review process versus during the EIR process,
and requesting staff to model the other two land use alternatives considered by Council
some months ago. This would give Council the opportunity to review other land use
alternatives including a concentrated residential TOD mixed use opportunity at Hacienda
Business Park.

City Council Minutes 6 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Mayor Hosterman invited public testimony.

Naomi Jones indicated she supported doing a traffic model with the Stoneridge Drive
extension. She believes the residents near Valley Avenue were told months ago that
there were studies of the extension being done and she wanted to know where the
results of those studies are. She felt the Stoneridge residents should share the traffic
loads and not push their problems onto the residents near Santa Rita and Valley. The
extension has been planned for fifteen years. She noted there are approved plans for a
shopping center, including a Home Depot, in the area of Santa Rita and Valley. There is
already a traffic problem on Valley Avenue and after the completion of the shopping
center; the traffic burden will only increase. She urged Council to do what is best for the
whole city and make certain the traffic study with the Stoneridge extension is done, in
order for decisions to be based on the facts.

Dan Maslana indicated he did not want to put one neighborhood against another and
wanted to see what was best for the entire city. He expressed his concern about the
traffic on Valley and he asked Council to reject the plan for the Home Depot on Valley
Avenue. He felt the site should contain businesses useful to the southeast part of the
city so the residents don’t have to drive to other parts of the city, thereby reducing traffic
on Valiey Avenue. He suggested Longs Drugs, gas station, bagel shop, etc. because
those businesses would decrease cross-town traffic. He commented that the original
predictions in 1985 for the Stoneridge extension were that it would increase traffic by
one-third during peak time by cut-through drivers avoiding congestion. That was a time
when [-580 was not even in the top 20 congested areas and now it is number 2 in the
Bay Area. He felt the cut-through traffic today would be a disaster. The city predicted
only an 8% relief in traffic on Valley. He also noted Livermore’s plans for an outlet retail
center east of El Charro. He believed the Stoneridge extension would be used by all the
people trying to get to the Livermore businesses from out of town. He did not think the
Pleasanton businesses would appreciate being bypassed. Finally, he felt the extension
would create safety issues for children. He noted Council had adopted ordinances 1875
and 1882, which acknowledged the safety concerns that already exist on Stoneridge.
Furthermore, he pointed out that State Senate Bill 352 was passed which prohibits
construction of schools 500 feet from a highway or major thoroughfare. In conclusion,
he urged Council to consider the long list of problems related to the Stoneridge
extension.

Garland Draper believed that to insure that traffic decisions are made for the benefit of
the entire city, traffic models should include all options, including the Stoneridge
extension. He noted the General Plan was written a number of years ago as the
blueprint to guide future planning in order to keep pace with the business and housing
developments. It included the extension of Stoneridge to ElI Charro for nearly twenty
years. To insure the safety of the neighborhoods and long-term success of the local
businesses, he believed the traffic provisions of that General Plan must be implemented.
Additionally he noted that traffic should not be added to intersections that are already
dangerous.

Vaughn Wolfe indicated he would like to reduce traffic on Valley, but felt that extending
Stoneridge without limiting traffic access from 1-580 during peak hours would be
worthless. He pointed out the number of cars that run the traffic signal at Valley and

City Council Minutes 7 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



Stanley and asked how traffic enforcement affected the model and described various
situations he has seen. He believed expanding the roads would not solve the problems.
He supported expanding the ACE train service and felt it would be better than expanding
BART. He noted if there were eight trains a day, it would take 10,000 more riders and
5,000 cars off of 1-580. He noted the San Joaquin Rail Commission estimated the cost
at $300 million. He alsc noted this county was supporting a billion dollar BART
extension that would only carry about 3,000 more riders. He urged Council to consider
the improvements to the ACE train and felt Council should not approve any development
until it solved the traffic problems.

Councilmember Sullivan asked if the traffic model included any public transit such as
ACE or BART.

Deputy Director Tassano said it did, but the percentage for model choice did not
increase greatly with build out.

Councilmember Sullivan asked if transit oriented development would be modeled to see
how it would take traffic off the road.

Deputy Director Tassano said that has not been done yet but would be part of the next
step.

Heidi Massee believed it would be better to model Stoneridge Drive extension sooner
rather than later. She wanted to know exactly how it would impact traffic both in and out
of the city. She indicated at the present time there is no hard data that says if
Stoneridge was extended that 580/680 traffic would come through the city. What we do
know is that the level of service at various intersections is below LOS D and there are
safety risks for pedestrians. Another belief is that the extension would help disperse
traffic through the city more evenly as it was always intended. Therefore, she asked that
the model include the impact of the extension on traffic coming off the freeway and
passing through the city, the impact of the extension versus no extension on traffic
originating within the city, and use all that data to understand the impact to Valley and
Santa Rita.

Nancy Allen believed the Stoneridge decision was the most important decision for the
Council this year. She indicated no matter what the final decision was, the process is as
important or perhaps more important than the final outcome. She supported modeling
both options and felt people wanted to understand the regional cut-through issue, local
impacts, etc. From her review of development in northeast Pleasanton over the last
twenty years, she understood that it was predicated on Stoneridge Drive being able to
move traffic through the city. She felt the models would also help to understand the
impact on key intersections. She urged Council not to approve the Home Depot until the
traffic problems were solved.

LaVonne Youel supported doing the Stoneridge model before the EIR. If the decision is
to proceed with the extension, then it should include some of the alterations Mr. Wolfe
suggested in terms of traffic control. She did not want to accommodate Livermore's
businesses or to alter the quality of life drastically for those who live along Stoneridge.
She also believed consideration should be given for the quality of life of those who live
along Valley Avenue. She encouraged Council and the Commission to resolve city
traffic issues not only for Valley/Santa Rita or the Stoneridge extension, but to look at the

City Council Minutes 8 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



entire General Plan so traffic is dispersed through the city instead of just one or two
locations.

Max Malini indicated he did not see the extension of Stoneridge Drive as being a benefit
to the whole community. He believed as long as I-580 and 84 are congested,
Stoneridge would be used as an alternative route to commuters. He noted as a
commuter through Milpitas, he takes the fastest routes and does not patronize their
businesses. He believed Pleasanton and Milpitas are similar in that they are both
between two major highways. Once the floodgates are open, they cannot be closed.

Mary Roberts referred to the extension of Jack London to El Charro, which she believed
would occur sooner than expected because of the outlets to be constructed in
Livermore. She felt it was logical that traffic going to Livermore on 580 would exit at El
Charro to go to Livermore on Jack London. She asked how that would affect the Santa
Rita to Valley left turn, which is mostly traffic to Livermore. She asked if there would be
a reduction in traffic at that intersection if traffic were to use the El Charro/Jack London
connection. She supported doing the Stoneridge modeling now. Also, she noted her
concern regarding the constrained gateways. She felt there may be a danger of making
the General Plan internally inconsistent because of the community character element,
which calls for beautiful gateways. If you take out landscaping to make wider streets to
keep traffic moving, then the community character element may have to be changed to
support broader roads; not medians and trees.

Brad Hirst congratulated the Council and Commission for wading through the pages and
pages of material regarding the General Plan. He stated there has been discussion
about the Triangle Study. He noted that Highway 84 could have been improved as a toll
road at private expense with no charge to Livermore or Pleasanton residents. However,
twenty years ago the Councils of Pleasanton and Livermore stopped that proposal. He
believes if study after study continues with no completion, nothing will happen for the
next twenty years. He urged Council to model the Stoneridge extension sooner rather
than later. Regarding the constrained gateways, he asked what happens to the
streetscapes off the freeway interchanges. One of the things that made Pleasanton
pleasant is its streets. He has brought many visitors looking at Pleasanton for potential
development. There are three major things peopie comment on: street landscaping,
parks and downtown. He implored Council not to delete any landscaping along major
arterials in order to increase the traffic flow. Regarding the Stoneridge extension, he
indicated there are eight intersections, excluding downtown that will be at LOS E or F
following improvements. He noted Santa Rita north of Valley Avenue carries 43,000
cars today. South of Valley Avenue it carries 26,000. He said 40% of the traffic or
17,000 cars a day on southbound Santa Rita are making a turn either left or right. Valley
Avenue west of Santa Rita has 16,000 cars a day and east of Valley there are 26,000
cars. That is a 60% increase in traffic volume. He commented there are proposals in
various stages to construct significant improvements on the Staples Ranch property. a
senior housing facility, the Hendricks Automotive and the Sharks Ice Recreation Facility.
He believes if Stoneridge is not extended the local residents who want to use any of
those three venues will be forced onto the freeway.

Nancy Storch, said from her review of the staff report, it appears the developments on
the east side of El Charro were not included in the model. She believes people who live
and work in Pleasanton and want to use the commercial facilities on El Charro will have
to go around. Many of them will be going through Santa Rita and Valley as well as |-

City Council Minutes 9 January 30, 2007
Joint Workshop



